
 
 
 
 
 

1480 Harbour Drive 
Wilmington, NC 28401-7776 

 
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING 

Monday, May 9, 2022 • 11:00 A.M. 

AGENDA 

 
Items marked with *** are actionable items that require a vote. 

This meeting will be a remote meeting pursuant to SL 2020-3.  Members of the public are invited to view a live video stream of the 
meeting at www.capefearcog.org/live. Public comments received by email to main@capefearcog.org or by mail to 1480 Harbour Dr, 
Wilmington, NC, 28401 at least 24 hours prior to the meeting will be presented to the Executive Committee. For further information 
Call 910-395-4553. 

 

1. Call to Order, Welcome & Roll Call  
2. Invocation & Pledge 
3. Approval of Agenda *** 
4. Approval Minutes (see attachment) *** 

a. February 14, 2022 
5. 2023 Annual Meeting Date 

a. Thursday, February 23, 2023 *** 
6. Finance Reports  

a. Pay Plan amendment (see attachment) *** 
b. Auditors Contract approval (see attachment) *** 
c. Budget Report through March 31, 2022 (see attachment) *** 
d. Budget Ordinance Amendment for May 31, 2022 (see attachment) *** 
e. Presentation of FY 22/23 Budget and set public hearing for 6/13 (see attachment) *** 

7. Staff Reports 
a. Executive Director 

i. Contracts Summary (see attachment) 
b. Area Agency on Aging 
c. Homeless Continuum of Care 
d. Local Government Services 
e. Workforce Development 

8. Forum Update 
9. Chairman & Member Comments 
10. Adjourn 

Next Meeting: General Executive Committee meeting FY 22/23 Budget Public Hearing Monday, June 
13, 2022, at 11:00 A.M. 

http://www.capefearcog.org/live
mailto:main@capefearcog.org


Page Left Blank On Purpose 



 
1480 Harbour Drive 

Wilmington, NC 28401-7776 
 

 

 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING 
February 14, 2022, • 11:00 AM 

MINUTES 

Executive Committee Present:        
Teresa Batts*  Brenda Bozeman* George Brown  Jan Dawson  Mike Forte 
Lamont Grate*   Julia Olson-Boseman* Charlie Rivenbark  Brent Watts* 

Executive Committee Absent: 
    

Other General Membership Delegates Present: 
Lynn Barbee*  Rosemary Dorsey* Sheila Grady*  John Gunter*   
Glenn Marshall  Ryan Merrill*  Allen Oliver*  Penny Stith* 

CFCOG Staff Present:     
Ginger Brick*  Patrick Flanagan Judy Herring*  Holly Pilson  Wes MacLeod 
April Radford  Allen Serkin  Dawn Tucker 
Guest Present: 
Noel Fox 

This meeting was a remote meeting held during a declared emergency pursuant to N.C.G.S. §166A-19.24.  Members 
and others who participated by simultaneous communication are indicated with an asterisk (*). 

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

1. Call to Order, Welcome and Roll Call 

Mr. Forte called the meeting to order & welcomed everyone at 11:01 AM.  

Mr. Serkin did roll call to confirm quorum. Present: Ms. Batts, Ms. Bozeman, Mr. Brown, Ms. Dawson, Mr. Forte, 
Mr. Grate, Ms. Olson-Boseman, Mr. Rivenbark, and Mr. Watts. 

2. Invocation and Pledge 

Mr. Rivenbark led the invocation and Pledge of Allegiance. 

3. Approval of Agenda 

Forte asked for approval of the agenda. Motion by Mr. Rivenbark, second by Mr. Brown, to approve the agenda 
carried unanimously by roll call vote. Ayes: Ms. Batts, Mr. Brown, Ms. Dawson, Mr. Forte, Mr. Grate, Ms. Olson-
Boseman, Mr. Rivenbark, and Mr. Watts. Nays: None. Absent: None. 

4. Approval of Minutes 

Mr. Forte asked if there were any corrections to the minutes. Mr. Serkin informed the Executive Committee of an 
adjustment to the minutes notating the addition of motions to come out of closed session. Motion by Mr. 
Rivenbark, second by Mr. Brown, to approve the December 13, 2021, minutes as written with the addition.  The 
motion carried unanimously by roll call vote. Ayes: Ms. Batts, Mr. Brown, Ms. Dawson, Mr. Forte, Mr. Grate, Ms. 
Olson-Boseman, Mr. Rivenbark, and Mr. Watts. Nays: None. Absent: None. 

5. Finance Report 

Ms. Tucker presented the budget report through December 31, 2021. Ms. Tucker and Ms. Pilson addressed 

questions from the Executive Committee. Motion by Mr. Rivenbark, second by Mr. Brown, to approve the budget 

report carried unanimously by roll call vote. Ayes: Ms. Batts, Mr. Brown, Ms. Dawson, Mr. Forte, Mr. Grate, Ms. 

Olson-Boseman, Mr. Rivenbark, and Mr. Watts. Nays: None. Absent: None. 



 

 

Ms. Tucker presented the budget ordinance amendment #4. Mr. Serkin addressed questions form the Executive 

Committee. Motion by Mr. Rivenbark, second by Ms. Forte, to approve budget ordinance amendment #4 carried 

unanimously by roll call vote Ayes: Ms. Batts, Mr. Brown, Ms. Dawson, Mr. Forte, Mr. Grate, Ms. Olson-Boseman, 

Mr. Rivenbark, and Mr. Watts. Nays: None. Absent: None. 

Mr. Serkin presented the position classification and pay plan. There were no questions. Motion by Mr. Forte, 

seconded by Mr. Brown, to approve the position classification and pay plan carried unanimously by roll call vote. 

Ayes: Ms. Batts, Mr. Brown, Ms. Dawson, Mr. Forte, Mr. Grate, Ms. Olson-Boseman, Mr. Rivenbark, and Mr. Watts. 

Nays: None. Absent: None. 

6. Resolution updating the Executive Director contracting authority 

Mr. Serkin presented resolution updating the Executive Director’s contracting authority to the Executive 
Committee. Mr. Serkin addressed questions from the Executive Committee. Motion by Mr. Rivenbark, second 
by Mr. Brown, to approve the resolution carried unanimously by roll call vote. Ayes: Ms. Batts, Mr. Brown, Ms. 
Dawson, Mr. Forte, Mr. Grate, Ms. Olson-Boseman, Mr. Rivenbark, and Mr. Watts. Nays: None. Absent: None. 

Due to the approval of the Resolution no action was needed from the Executive Committee to approve the 
contract for professional service for NC 210/East Coast Greenway Feasibility Study. 

7. Filling vacant Executive Committee seat 

Mr. Forte informed the Executive Committee of the recommendation from the nominating subcommittee to 

appoint Ms. Brenda Bozeman to fill the seat vacated by Mr. Eccard on the Executive Committee. Motion by Mr. 

Rivenbark, second by Mr. Brown to approve Ms. Bozeman to the Executive Committee carried unanimously by 

roll call vote. Ayes: Ms. Batts, Mr. Brown, Ms. Dawson, Mr. Forte, Mr. Grate, Ms. Olson-Boseman, Mr. Rivenbark, 

and Mr. Watts. Nays: None. Absent: None. 

8. 2022 Executive Committee Nominations 

Mr. Forte presented the nominations of the Executive Committee to be presented to the board at the general 

membership meeting on March 31, 2022. 

Mike Forte, Brunswick County 

Brent Watts, Columbus County 

Julia Olson-Boseman, New Hanover County 

George Brown, Pender County 

Brenda Bozeman, Brunswick Co. Municipal (Leland) 

Lamont Grate, Columbus Co. Municipal (Tabor City) 

Charlie Rivenbark, New Hanover County Municipal (Wilmington) 

Jan Dawson, Pender Co. Municipal (Burgaw) 

Teresa Batts, Municipal At-Large (Surf City) 

Motion by Mr. Forte, second by Mr. Rivenbark to accepting nomination carried unanimously by roll call vote. 

Ayes: Ms. Batts, Ms. Bozeman, Mr. Brown, Ms. Dawson, Mr. Forte, Mr. Grate, Ms. Olson-Boseman, Mr. Rivenbark, 

and Mr. Watts. Nays: None. Absent: None. 

9. 2022 Annual Meeting Agenda 

Mr. Serkin presented agenda for the March 31, 2022, Annual Meeting. There no questions. Motion by Mr. Brown, 
second by Mr. Rivenbark to approve the annual meeting agenda carried unanimously by roll call vote. Ayes: Ms. 
Batts, Ms. Bozeman, Mr. Brown, Ms. Dawson, Mr. Forte, Mr. Grate, Ms. Olson-Boseman, Mr. Rivenbark, and Mr. 
Watts. Nays: None. Absent: None. 



 
1480 Harbour Drive 

Wilmington, NC 28401-7776 
 

 

 

10. Staff Report 

Mr. Serkin presented the contract summary and administrative report. Ms. Pilson addressed questions about 
the Supplemental Nutrition money.  

Ms. Pilson presented the Area Agency on Aging report. There were no questions. 

Mr. Herring presented the Continuum of Care report. There were no questions. 

Mr. MacLeod presented the Local Government Services report. Discussion ensued. There were no questions. 

Ms. Brick addressed earlier finance questions regarding staffing and working with contractors. Ms. Brick 
presented the Workforce Development report. There were no questions. 

Mr. Serkin addressed concerns about the potential realignment of Workforce Development. Mr. Serkin drafted 

a letter from the four county consortium board members to be signed and presented the NCWorks Commission 

apposing the realignment of the Workforce Development program. Mr. Serkin and Ms. Brick addressed 

questions form the Executive Committee.  

11. Chairman, Member, and Delegate Comments 

Mr. Forte promises to keep Executive Committee updated on the potential realignment of Workforce 

Development news. Mr. Forte expressed his appreciation of the Executive Committee. Mr. Forte reminded the 

Executive Committee of the annual meeting on March 31, 2022, at 6:30PM at the Brunswick Center in Supply, NC 

and encouraged all to attend. 

There were no other comments. 

12. Adjournment 

Motion by Mr. Rivenbark, second by Mr. Brown to adjourn the meeting carried unanimously by roll call vote. Ayes: 
Ms. Batts, Ms. Bozeman, Mr. Brown, Ms. Dawson, Mr. Forte, Mr. Grate, Ms. Olson-Boseman, Mr. Rivenbark, and 
Mr. Watts. Nays: None. Absent: None. 

Meeting adjourned at 12:00PM. 

Respectfully submitted,      
 
 
 
____________________________________   ___________________________________ 
April D. Radford, Clerk to the Board    Mike Forte, Chairman 



Page Left Blank On Purpose 









Page Left Blank On Purpose 







































CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS LGC-205 Rev. /2  

The 

of 

and 

and 

for 

Primary Government Unit, together with DPCU (if applicable), hereinafter referred to as Governmental Unit(s) 

Auditor Name 

Auditor Address 

Hereinafter referred to as Auditor 

hereby agree as follows: 

Must be within four months of FYE 

The Auditor shall audit all statements and disclosures required by U.S. generally accepted auditing
standards (GAAS) and additional required legal statements and disclosures of all funds and/or divisions of the
Governmental Unit(s). The non-major combining, and individual fund statements and schedules shall be
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and an opinion shall
be rendered in relation to (as applicable) the governmental activities, the business- type activities, the
aggregate DPCUs, each major governmental and enterprise fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information (non-major government and enterprise funds, the internal service fund type, and the fiduciary fund
types).

At a minimum, the Auditor shall conduct audit and render report in accordance with GAAS. The 
Auditor shall perform the audit in accordance with Government Auditing Standards if 

. 
Uniform

Administration Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance)
the State Single Audit Implementation Act  This audit and all associated audit documentation may be subject 

to review by Federal and State agencies in accordance with Federal and State laws, including the staffs of the 
Office of State Auditor (OSA) and the Local Government Commission (LGC). If the audit requires a federal 
single audit  the Uniform Guidance (§200.501), it is recommended that the Auditor and 
Governmental Unit(s) jointly agree, in advance of the execution of this contract, which party is responsible for 
submission of the audit and the accompanying data collection form to the Federal Audit Clearinghouse as
required under the Uniform Guidance (§200.512).

If the audit and Auditor communication are found in this review to be substandard, the results of the review 
may be forwarded to the North Carolina State Board of CPA Examiners (NC State Board). 

Page 1 

Governing Board 

Primary Government Unit

Discretely Presented Component Unit (DPCU) (if applicable) 

Fiscal Year Ending  

Executive Committee

Cape Fear Council of Governments

n/a

PBMares, LLP

3621 John Platt Drive Morehead City, NC 28557

06/30/22 10/31/22



CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS LGC-205 Rev. /20  

If an entity is determined to be a component of another government as defined by the group audit
standards, the entity’s auditor shall make a good faith effort to comply in a timely manner with the requests of
the group auditor in accordance with AU-6 §600.41 - §600.42.

This contract contemplates an unmodified opinion being rendered. If during the process of conducting
the audit, the Auditor determines that it will not be possible to render an unmodified opinion on the financial
statements of the unit, the Auditor shall contact the LGC taff to discuss the circumstances leading to that
conclusion as soon as is practical and before the final report is issued. The audit shall include such tests of the
accounting records and such other auditing procedures as are considered by the Auditor to be necessary in the
circumstances. Any limitations or restrictions in scope which would lead to a qualification should be fully
explained in an attachment to this contract.

If this audit engagement is subject to the standards for audit as defined in Government Auditing
Standards, 201  revision, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, then by accepting this
engagement, the Auditor warrants that he/she has met the requirements for a peer review and continuing
education as specified in Government Auditing Standards. The Auditor agrees to provide a copy of the most
recent peer review report to the Governmental Unit(s) and the Secretary of the LGC prior to the execution of an
audit contract. Subsequent submissions of the report are required only upon report expiration or upon auditor’s
receipt of an updated peer review report. If the audit firm received a peer review rating other than pass, the
Auditor shall not contract with the Governmental Unit(s) without first contacting the Secretary of the LGC for a
peer review analysis that may result in additional contractual requirements.

If the audit engagement is not subject to Government Accounting Standards or if financial statements are not 
prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and fail to include all 
disclosures required by GAAP, the Auditor shall provide an explanation as to why in an attachment to this 
contract or in an amendment. 

It is agreed that time is of the essence in this contract. All audits are to be performed and the report of
audit submitted to LGC aff within four months of fiscal year end. If it becomes necessary to amend th

, an amended contract along with a written 
explanation of the  shall be submitted to the Secretary of the LGC for approval.

It is agreed that GAAS include a review of the Governmental Unit’s (Units’) systems of internal control
and accounting as same relate to accountability of funds and adherence to budget and law requirements
applicable thereto; that the Auditor shall make a written report, which may or may not be a part of the written
report of audit, to the Governing Board setting forth his/her findings, together with his recommendations for
improvement. That written report shall include all matters defined as “significant deficiencies and material
weaknesses” in AU-C 265 of the AICPA Professional Standards (Clarified). The Auditor shall file a copy of that
report with the Secretary of the LGC.

All local government and public authority contracts for audit or audit-related work require the approval of
the Secretary of the LGC. This includes annual or special audits, agreed upon procedures related to internal
controls, bookkeeping or other assistance necessary to prepare the Governmental Unit’s (Units’) records for
audit, financial statement preparation, any finance-related investigations, or any other audit- related work in the
State of North Carolina. Approval is not required on contracts and invoices for system improvements and
similar services of a non-auditing nature.

Invoices for services rendered under these contracts shall not be paid by the Governmental Unit(s) until
the invoice has been approved by the Secretary of the LGC. (This also includes any progress billings.)[G.S.
159-34 and 115C-447] All invoices for Audit work shall be submitted in PDF format to the Secretary of the LGC
for approval. The invoice marked ‘approved ’with approval date shall be returned to

Page 2 



CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS LGC-205 Rev. /20  

the Auditor to present to the Governmental Unit(s) for payment. This  is not applicable to 
contracts for audits of hospitals. 

In consideration of the satisfactory performance of the provisions of this contract, the Governmental
Unit(s) shall pay to the Auditor, upon approval by the Secretary of the LGC if required, the fee, which
includes any costs the Auditor may incur from work paper or peer reviews or any other quality assurance
program required by third parties (federal and state grantor and oversight agencies or other organizations)
as required under the Federal and State Single Audit Acts. This does not include fees for any pre-issuance
reviews that may be required by the NC Association of CPAs (NCACPA) Peer Review Committee or NC
State Board of CPA Examiners (see Item 13).

If the Governmental Unit(s) has/have outstanding revenue bonds, the Auditor shall submit to LGC taff,
either in the notes to the audited financial statements or as a separate report, a calculation demonstrating
compliance with the revenue bond rate covenant. Additionally, the Auditor shall submit to LGC taff
simultaneously with the Governmental Unit’s (Units’) audited financial statements any other bond compliance
statements or additional reports required by the authorizing bond documents, unless otherwise specified in the
bond documents.

After completing the audit, the Auditor shall submit to the Governing Board a written report of audit. This
report shall include, but not be limited to, the following information: (a) Management’s Discussion and Analysis,
(b) the financial statements and notes of the Governmental Unit(s) and all of its component units prepared in
accordance with GAAP, (c) supplementary information requested by the Governmental Unit(s) or required for full
disclosure under the law, and (d) the Auditor’s opinion on the material presented. The Auditor shall furnish the
required number of copies of the report of audit to the Governing Board upon completion.

If the audit firm is required by the NC State Board, the NCACPA Peer Review Committee, or the
Secretary of the LGC to have a pre-issuance review of its audit work, there shall be a statement in the
engagement letter indicating the pre-issuance review requirement. There also shall be a statement that the
Governmental Unit(s) shall not be billed for the pre-issuance review. The pre-issuance review shall be performed 
prior to the completed audit being submitted to LGC Staff. The pre-issuance review report shall accompany the 
audit report upon submission to LGC Staff.

The Auditor shall submit the report of audit in PDF format to LGC Staff. For audits of units other than
hospitals, the audit report should be submitted when (or prior to) submitting the final invoice for services
rendered. The report of audit, as filed with the Secretary of the LGC, becomes a matter of public record for
inspection, review and copy in the offices of the LGC by any interested parties. Any subsequent revisions to
these reports shall be sent to the Secretary of the LGC. These audited financial statements, excluding the 
Auditors’ opinion, may be used in the preparation of official statements for debt offerings by municipal bond 
rating services to fulfill secondary market disclosure requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission 
and for other lawful purposes of the Governmental Unit(s) without requiring consent of the Auditor. If the LGC 
Staff determines that corrections need to be made to the Governmental Unit’s (Units’) financial statements, those
corrections shall be provided within three business days of notification unless another deadline is agreed to by
LGC taff.

Should circumstances disclosed by the audit call for a more detailed investigation by the Auditor than
necessary under ordinary circumstances, the Auditor shall inform the Governing Board in writing of the need
for such additional investigation and the additional compensation required therefore. Upon approval by the

Page 3 



CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS LGC-205 Rev. /20

Secretary of the LGC, this contract may be modified or amended to include the increased time, compensation, 
or both as may be agreed upon by the Governing Board and the Auditor. 

If an approved contract needs to be modified or amended for any reason, the change shall be made in
writing pre-audited if the change includes a change in audit fee (pre-audit requirement does not apply to
ospitals). This amended contract shall be completed in full, including a written explanation of the change, 

signed and dated by all original parties to the contract. It shall then be submitted to the Secretary of the LGC for 
approval. No change to the audit contract shall be effective unless approved by the Secretary of the LGC, the 
Governing Board, and the Auditor.

A copy of the engagement letter, issued by the Auditor and signed by both the Auditor and the
Governmental Unit(s), shall be attached to this contract, and except for fees, work, and terms not related to audit
services, shall be incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein as part of this contract. In case of conflict
between the terms of the engagement letter and the terms of this contract, the terms of this contract shall take
precedence. Engagement letter terms that conflict with the contract are deemed to be void unless the conflicting
terms of this contract are specifically deleted in Item  of this contract. Engagement letters containing
indemnification clauses shall not be accepted by LGC Staff.

Special provisions should be limited. Please list any special provisions in an attachment.

A separate contract should not be made for each division to be audited or report to be submitted. If a
DPCU is subject to the audit requirements detailed in the Local Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act and
a separate audit report is issued, a separate audit contract is required. If a separate report is not to be issued
and the DPCU is included in the primary government audit, the DPCU shall be named along with the p
government on this audit contract. DPCU Board approval date, signatures from the DPCU Board chairman and
finance officer also shall be included on this contract.

The contract shall be executed, pre-audited (pre-audit requirement does not apply to hospitals), and 
physically signed by all parties including Governmental Unit(s) and the Auditor, then submitted in PDF format to 
the Secretary of the LGC.

The contract is not valid until it is approved by the Secretary of the LGC. The staff of the LGC shall notify
the Governmental Unit and Auditor of contract approval by email. The audit should not be started before the
contract is approved.

Retention of Client Records: Auditors are subject to the NC State Board of CPA Examiners’ Retention of
Client Records Rule 21 NCAC 08N .0305 as it relates to the provision of audit and other attest services, as well
as non-attest services. Clients and former clients should be familiar with the requirements of this rule prior to
requesting the return of records.

This contract may be terminated at any time by mutual consent and agreement of the Governmental
Unit(s) and the Auditor, provided that (a) the consent to terminate is in writing and signed by both parties, (b) the
parties have agreed on the fee amount which shall be paid to the Auditor (if applicable), and (c) no termination
shall be effective until approved in writing by the Secretary of the LGC.

The Governmental Unit’s (Units’) failure or forbearance to enforce, or waiver of, any right or an event of
breach or default on one occasion or instance shall not constitute the waiver of such right, breach or default on
any subsequent occasion or instance.

There are no other agreements between the parties hereto and no other agreements relative hereto that
shall be enforceable unless entered into in accordance with the procedure set out herein and approved by the
Secretary of the LGC.

Page 4 



CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS LGC-205 Rev. /20  

E-Verify. Auditor shall comply with the requirements of NCGS Chapter 64 Article 2. Further, if Auditor
utilizes any subcontractor(s), Auditor shall require such subcontractor(s) to comply with the requirements of
NCGS Chapter 64, Article 2.

or all non-attest services,
the Auditor shall adhere to the independence rules of the AICPA Professional Code of Conduct and
Governmental Auditing Standards, 2018 Revision (as applicable). Financial statement preparation
assistance shall be deemed a “significant threat” requiring the Auditor to apply safeguards sufficient to
reduce the threat to an acceptable level. If the Auditor cannot reduce the threats to an acceptable level, the
Auditor cannot complete the audit. If the Auditor is able to reduce the threats to an acceptable level, the
documentation of this determination, including the safeguards applied, must be included in the audit
workpapers.
All non-attest service(s) being performed by the Auditor that are necessary to perform the audit must be 
identified and included in this contract. The Governmental Unit shall designate an individual with the suitable 
skills, knowledge, and/or experience (SKE) necessary to oversee the services and accept responsibility for 
the results of the services performed. If the Auditor is able to identify an individual with the appropriate SKE, 
s/he must document and include in the audit workpapers how he/she reached that conclusion. If the Auditor 
determines that an individual with the appropriate SKE cannot be identified, the Auditor cannot perform both 
the non-attest service(s) and the audit. See "Fees for Audit Services" page of this contract to disclose the 
person identified as having the appropriate SKE for the Governmental Unit. 

Page 5 



CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS LGC-205 Rev. /20  

The process for submitting contracts, audit reports and invoices is subject to change. Auditors and
units should use the submission process and instructions in effect at the time of submission. Refer to the
N.C. Department of State Treasurer website at 

Page  



CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS LGC-205 Rev. /20  

FEES FOR AUDIT SERVICES 

1. For all non-attest services, the Auditor shall adhere to the independence rules of the AICPA Professional
Code of Conduct (as applicable) and Governmental Auditing Standards,2018 Revision. Refer to Item 2  of
this contract for specific requirements. The following information must be provided by the Auditor; contracts
presented to the LGC without his information will be not be approved.
Financial statements were prepared by: Auditor Governmental Unit Third Party 

If applicable: Individual at Governmental Unit designated to have the suitable skills, knowledge, and/or 
experience (SKE) necessary to oversee the  non-attest  services  and  accept  responsibility  for  the 
results of these services:      
 Name:   Title :    Email Address: 

Fees may not be included in this contract for work performed on Annual Financial Information Reports
(AFIRs), Form 990s, or other services not associated with audit fees and costs. Such fees may be included in
the engagement letter but may not be included in this contract or in any invoices requiring approval of the LGC.
See Items 8  for details on other allowable and excluded fees.

Prior to submission of the completed audited financial report  applicable compliance reports
  (if required) the Auditor may submit invoices for

approval for services rendered , not to exceed 75% of the billings
Should the 75% cap provided 

below conflict with the cap calculated by LGC taff based on the billings on file with the LGC, the LGC
calculation prevails. All invoices for services rendered in an audit engagement as defined in 20 NCAC .0503 
shall be submitted to the Commission for approval before any payment is made. Payment before approval is a 
violation of law. (This  not applicable to contracts and invoices associated with audits of hospitals).

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT FEES 

Primary Government Unit 

Audit Fee $ 

Additional Fees Not Included in Audit Fee: 

Fee per Major Program $ 

Writing Financial Statements $ 
All Other Non-Attest Services $ 
75% Cap for Interim Invoice Approval 
(not applicable to hospital contracts) 

$ 

DPCU FEES (if applicable) 
Discretely Presented Component Unit 

Audit Fee $ 

Additional Fees Not Included in Audit Fee: 

Fee per Major Program $ 

Writing Financial Statements $ 

All Other Non-Attest Services $ 
75% Cap for Interim Invoice Approval 
(not applicable to hospital contracts) 

$ 

Page  

  

✔

Dawn Tucker Finance Director dtucker@capefearcog.org

Cape Fear Council of Governments
36,500

4,000 per program exceeding two programs

included in audit fee above

27,375.00

n/a



LGC-205 CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS Rev.

Page

SIGNATURE PAGE

AUDIT FIRM

Audit Firm

Authorized Firm Representative (typed or printed) Signature

Date Email Address

GOVERNMENTAL UNIT

Governmental Unit

Date Primary Government Unit Governing Board Approved Audit Contract
(G.S. 59-34(a) or G.S.115C-447(a))

Mayor/Chairperson (typed or printed) Signature

Date Email Address

Chair of Audit Committee (typed or printed, or “NA”) Signature

Date Email Address

GOVERNMENTAL UNIT – PRE-AUDIT CERTIFICAT

Required by G.S. 159-28(a1) or G.S. 115C-441(a1)

This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by The Local Government Budget and Fiscal 
Control Act or by the School Budget and Fiscal Control Act.

Primary Governmental Unit Finance Officer (typed or printed) Signature

Date of Pre-Audit Certificate Email Address

PBMares, LLP

Robert E. Bittner

04/15/22 rebittner@pbmares.com

Cape Fear Council of Governments

Mike Forte

n/a

Dawn Tucker

dtucker@capefearcog.org



LGC-205 CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS Rev. /20

Page

SIGNATURE PAGE – DPCU
(complete only if applicable)

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT

DPCU

Date DPCU Governing Board Approved Audit 
Contract (Ref: G.S. 159-34(a) or G.S. 115C-447(a))

Chairperson (typed or printed) Signature

Date Email Address

Chair of Audit Committee (typed or printed, or “NA”) Signature

Date Email Address

DPCU – PRE-AUDIT CERTIFICATE

Required by G.S. 159-28(a1) or G.S. 115C-441(a1

This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by The Local Government Budget and Fiscal 
Control Act or by the School Budget and Fiscal Control Act.

 Finance Officer (typed or printed) Signature

Date of Pre-Audit Certificate Email Address

n/a

PRINT



Page Left Blank On Purpose 



Cash Balance in Bank 138,026       

North Carolina Cash Management Investments 641,694       

Total Cash on Hand 779,721$     

Adjusted Jul - Mar Reserve Remaining Percent

Departments Budget Revenues Balance Budget Received

Continuum of Care 631,117$            224,473$         77,319$        329,325$        41%
Local Gov Services 2,018,162$        246,046           1,318,750    453,366          35%
Area Agency on Aging 8,375,920$        3,565,030        2,117,224    2,693,665       57%
Workforce Development 6,532,102$        2,361,000        1,333,911    2,837,191       45%
General Fund 42,000                185,569           (143,569)         442%

Total Revenues 17,599,300$      6,582,118$     4,847,204$  6,313,547$    52%

Beginning Jul - Mar Reserve Remaining Percent

Departments Budget Expenditures Balance Budget Expended

Continuum of Care 85,000$              69,275$           15,725$          81%
COVID Motel Shelter Program 50,000                20,469              29,531            41%
NHC-Non-County Agency Funding 27,000                13,707              13,293            51%
ESG - CARES 135,108              57,148              77,960            42%
ESG - HMIS 254,559              64,144              77,319          113,096          36%
ESG - ADM 23,724                15,581              8,143               66%
HUD - PLANNING 55,727                35,042              20,684            63%

Continuum of Care 631,117              275,367           77,319          278,432          50%

Planning Services 1,672,878           169,635           1,318,750    184,493          48%
Rural Planning Org 235,969              93,205              142,764          39%
MOTSU Follow Up 35,380                9,846                25,534            28%
EDA Disaster Recovery 27,920                27,920              -                   100%
EDA CARES 46,015                46,015              -                   100%

Local Gov Services 2,018,162           346,621           1,318,750    352,791          50%

Aging Planning & Admin. 362,241              219,315           142,926          61%
Ombudsman & Elder Abuse 221,185              150,794           70,391            68%
Project Care 109,000              85,859              23,141            79%
Family Caregiver Support 140,113              83,238            56,875            59%
AAA Funds to Counties 4,231,808           2,504,523       1,727,285       59%
COVID-19 Vaccine Funds 87,047                27,257              59,790            31%
AAA CARES 522,676              521,881           795                  100%
AAA SAA 277,854              4,800                273,054          2%
AAA ARP 2,423,996           7,449              2,117,224    299,323          2%

Area Agency on Aging 8,375,920           3,605,116        2,117,224    2,653,580       58%

WIOA - Admin 582,728             238,373           203,510        140,845          63%
WIOA - Adult 2,060,121           745,061           227,561        1,087,499       41%
WIOA - Dislocated Worker 1,252,079           534,118           47,002          670,959          44%
WIOA - IWTG 67,925                18,771              40,418          8,736               68%
WIOA - Youth 2,241,204           743,709          762,603       734,892          50%
WIOA-IFA 88,057                74,460            13,597            85%
WIOA-NDWG COVID 103,731              49,400            52,818         1,514               97%
WIOA-Finish Line Grant 136,256              16,386            119,870          12%

Workforce Development 6,532,102           2,420,278        1,333,911    2,777,912       47%

General Operations 42,000                4,544                -                 37,456            11%
General Fund 42,000                4,544                -                 37,456            11%

Total Expenditures 17,599,300$      6,651,926$     4,847,204$  6,100,170$    52%

Administration 446,737              292,054           -                 154,683          65%
*Administrative costs are allocated to and included in the department, program or project budgets.

Budget & Actual Expenditures

CAPE FEAR COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS
Cash Balance and

Budget/Expenditure Comparison
FY 2021-2022 (as of March 31, 2022)  UNAUDITED

Cash Balance

Budget & Actual Revenues



Page Left Blank On Purpose 



CAPE FEAR COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 
FISCAL YEAR 2021-2022 BUDGET ORDINANCE AMENDMENT #5 

 
WHEREAS, the Cape Fear Council of Governments (Council) is a regional council of 
governments organized pursuant to N.C.G.S. 160A-470 through 478; 
 
WHEREAS, the Council is designated by the State of North Carolina as the Lead Regional 
Organization for Region O, serving Brunswick, Columbus, New Hanover, and Pender counties; 
 
WHEREAS, the Executive Committee is the governing board of the Council; 
 
WHEREAS, a regional council of governments is a public authority subject to N.C.G.S. 159, 
Article 3, the Local Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act; and 
 
WHEREAS, N.C.G.S. 159-8(a) requires a public authority to operate under an annual balanced 
budget ordinance; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by Executive Committee of the Cape Fear Council 
of Governments that the budget ordinance for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2021 and ending 
June 30, 2022 is hereby amended as follows: 
 
SECTION 1: The following General Fund appropriations and revenues are amended as follows: 

 
Original 
Budget 

Prior Amended 
Budget 

Amendment 
#5  

Amended 
Budget 

Expenditures by Department:     
Local Governments Services $585,377   $       2,018,162    $  2,018,162  
Aging Services 5,137,196           8,375,920         36,053.00       8,411,973  
Workforce Development 7,758,538           6,532,102     (297,020.00)      6,235,082  
Homeless Continuum of Care 468,284              631,117           631,117  
General Government 42,000                 42,000                        -             42,000  
General Fund Total Expenditures $13,991,395  $17,599,301  ($260,967) $17,338,334  

     
Revenues by Source:     
Federal $93,965   $            91,107   $91,107  
Fed/State Pass Thru 13,338,523         15,490,848     (260,967.00)    15,229,881  
State 48,263                 48,263             48,263  
Member Assessment 42,000                 42,000             42,000  
Local Aging Share 60,377                 60,611             60,611  
Local RPO Share 80,018                 80,018             80,018  
Local COC Share 115,300              162,000           162,000  
Fee-For-Service 200,704           1,624,454        1,624,454  
Misc.                           -                       -   
Fund Balance Utilization 12,245                         -                       -   
General Fund Total Revenues $13,991,395  $17,599,301  ($260,967) $17,338,334  



SECTION 2:  The Budget Officer is hereby authorized to transfer appropriations within any of 
the parts in Section 1 without the approval of the Executive Committee. 
 
Adopted this 9th day of May 2022. 
 
 
 
_______________________________   ______________________________ 
Mike Forte, Chairman     April D. Radford, Clerk 



BUDGET MESSAGE 

CFCOG FY 2022-2023 Proposed Budget  1 

 

DRAFT 

5/4/2022 

CAPE FEAR COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 
 

PROPOSED  
FISCAL YEAR 2022-2023  

BUDGET  

 



   

CFCOG FY 2022-2023 Proposed Budget  1 

I am pleased to present the proposed FY 2022-2023 annual budget document for Cape Fear 
Council of Governments (CFCOG).  As required by North Carolina law, the budget is balanced with 
projected revenues equal to appropriated expenditures. The budget anticipates a general fund 
balance equal to 19% of annual operating expenditures. The Council is in sound fiscal shape with 
adequate reserves. 
 
Each program director worked with the Finance Director to develop their respective program 
budgets. This proposed budget document is the result of careful consideration by our staff based 
on best estimates of program revenues and appropriate expenditures to continue our operations. 
Overall, the budget reflects conservative revenue projections where final funding allocations are 
outstanding. Like our member governments, we develop our budget with a view towards providing 
the highest level of service at the least cost to the taxpayers. 
 
The total proposed appropriation for FY 22-23 is $14,787,535, representing a nearly $800,000 
(6%) increase over the $13,991,935 appropriation proposed for the prior fiscal year. This increase 
is primarily due to special pandemic-related program funding, some of which will be carried 
forward from the current fiscal year and have been incorporated into the current budget since 
initial adoption, and some of which are new American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funds. Specific 
changes related to each program are summarized as follows: 
 
Local Government Services ....................................................................... +71% ...... +$415,646 
Increase is due to additional projected technical assistance service contract with members and new 
contracts related to appropriations from the General Assembly through the NC Assoc. of Regional 
Councils of Government to assist local governments with pandemic and disaster recovery.  
Additional temporary staff are budgeted to assist with pandemic and disaster recovery efforts. 
 
Area Agency on Aging .............................................................................. +50% ... +$2,574,900 
Increase is due to higher allocations of State and federal funds resulting from the growing number 
of persons 60 years old or older in our region, additional State funding appropriated for Aging 
services from the General Assembly, and ARPA funds related to aging services.  Most of the 
additional funds will be passed directly to the counties or to their designated service providers. 
 
Workforce Development ............................................................................ -31% ..... -$2,386,992 
Decrease is due to an expected significant reduction in formula allocations resulting from the low 
regional unemployment rate.  Final formula allocations were not available during the budgeting 
process and a budget amendment will be required once award amounts are provided.  Decreases 
will be reflected in smaller contracts with workforce contractors and, therefore, fewer services 
provided in the region. 
 
Homeless Continuum of Care (COC) ......................................................... +41% ...... +$192,586 
Increase is due to expected additional local funding and from additional HUD program competition 
awards resulting from decreased participation from local partners.  Most additional program 
competition funds are expected to be subawarded or contracted to local providers. 
 
General Government ................................................................................. +0% ................... +$0 
No changes proposed. 
 
CFCOG Total .............................................................................................. +6% ........ +$796,140 



   

CFCOG FY 2022-2023 Proposed Budget  2 

Increase overall is mostly due to increases in Local Government Services and Homeless Continuum 
of Care programs, as Area Agency on Aging increases are offset by Workforce Development 
reductions.  Overall, the budget reflects conservative revenue projections. 
  
Administrative Overhead (Indirect) ........................................................... +4% .......... +$18,185 
Increase is due primarily to general cost inflation, including personnel costs. Overhead costs are 
included in the LGS, AAA, WFD and CoC budgets as allocated costs.  This allocation method is 
based on cost accounting principles and is reviewed annually by program funding sources, monitors 
and auditors.  The method allocates expenditures and shared expenses that cannot be reasonably 
be directly charged to specific programs. 
 
Personnel (Salaries and Fringe Benefits) 
The total of all salaries and fringes, including temporary personnel, is approximately 16% of the 
total Council budget. A 5% cost of living salary adjustment for all personnel is included in the 
proposed budget.  In addition, a merit pool for superior performance and longevity pay are 
proposed pursuant to the Personnel Policy. Any pay adjustments that may occur will be implemented 
November 1st if final funding allocations allow and after an amendment to the Pay Plan.  Pay 
classifications are assigned separately by the adopted Position Classification and Pay Plan.  Funds 
for a position classification and pay study is included in the budget.  The Council has an excellent 
staff and retention of our personnel is critical to the success of the organization as qualified 
candidates with relevant skills and experience are difficult to find. 
 
Revenues 
The Council is funded primarily through federal and State grants. Federal funds are awarded both 
directly from federal agencies and passed through State agencies as subawards. Variations in 
grant cycles and funding notice timelines means final funding levels are often not known until 
October. Certain funding allocations expire annually, and some allow unspent balances to 
carryforward to subsequent fiscal years. Federal and State funding levels are projected based on 
a combination of final funding notices supplied by granting agencies and estimates based on prior 
year funding levels (conservatively estimated until final funding notices are provided). 
 
Federal funds in the proposed budget are awarded directly by the US Department of Housing and 
Urban Development (HUD) and the Department of Defense. State funds and federal subawards in 
the proposed budget are awarded by the NC Department of Commerce, Department of Health 
and Human Services, Department of Transportation, and Department of Insurance.  This year 
additional federal and State funds were appropriated by the General Assembly to the NC 
Association of Regional Council of Governments for suballocation to individual Councils, including 
the CFCOG. 
 
Local funds in the proposed budget are obtained from dues and grant matching funds from member 
governments and from fee-for-service contracts. Dues are calculated using a base assessment of 
$300 plus eighteen cents per capita for municipalities or nine cents per capita (unincorporated) for 
counties. Local matching funds are assessed to members to meet federal matching requirements for 
the Area Agency on Aging and the Rural Transportation Planning Organization. 
 
Local funds from fee-for-service contracts include recurring funding commitments to support 
administrative operations of the Homeless Continuum of Care and non-recurring contracts to provide 
single-purpose services to member governments. Non-recurring contracts in the proposed budget 
include outside-agency funding from New Hanover County to support the Homeless Coordinated 



   

CFCOG FY 2022-2023 Proposed Budget  3 

Entry program and technical assistance contracts for services provided by our Local Government 
Services staff for a wide variety of services. LGS services to member jurisdictions include major 
deliverables like land use plans, development ordinance revisions, and utility asset management 
plans, as well as technical services like facilitation, mapping and land use administration. 
 
Revenues represented in this budget include a significant amount of pass-through funds paid to 
county aging services providers and homeless prevention agencies, as well as significant funding 
paid for contracted services, primarily for Workforce Development activities. 
 
Summary 
This budget reflects a lot of fine tuning to absorb increased operating costs and expanding program 
demands as well as local, state and federal funding changes.  We rely heavily on state and federal 
grants, but also depend upon the continued financial support of our member governments.  We 
hope to continue the positive trends into the future and will aggressively be seeking new programs 
to better serve our region and local government members. 
 
As you review the document, please feel free to ask any questions and seek additional information 
about any part of the budget at any time.  We are committed to serving our region together so 
that each member will realize the local benefits of regional cooperation. 
 
Respectively submitted, 
 
 
 
Allen Serkin 
Executive Director 



COMPARATIVE BUDGET ANALYSIS

FY 21-22 FY 22-23

Approved Proposed $ %

Local Government Services:

Revenues:

NCDOT 204,375 186,375 

Service Contracts 200,704 417,742 

Direct Federal Grants 100,280 23,512 

Dues/Match/Other 80,018 373,395 

Department Revenue 585,377          1,001,023       

Expenditures:

Local Government Services 249,128 451,484 

Transportation Planning 235,969 212,969 

Disaster Recovery 70,280 313,059 

MOTSU JLUS Implementation 30,000 23,512 

Department Expenditure 585,377          1,001,023       415,646$    71%

Area Agency on Aging:

Revenues:

State/Federal Funds 5,076,819       7,630,862       

Local Match 60,377 81,234 

Department Revenue 5,137,196       7,712,096       

Expenditures:

374,904 668,079 

210,972 221,186 

140,113 126,113 

109,000 109,000 

Planning and Administration

LTC Ombudsman and Elder Abuse 
Family Caregiver Support Program 
Project CARE
Provider Contracts 4,302,207       6,587,718       

Department Expenditure 5,137,196       7,712,096       2,574,900$   50%

Workforce Development:

Revenues:

WIOA Funds 7,758,538       5,371,546       

Department Revenue 7,758,538       5,371,546       

Expenditures:

Administration 676,714 521,301 

Adult Program 2,529,762       1,813,000       

Dislocated Worker Program 1,566,920       1,114,000       

Youth Program 2,700,142       1,858,245       

Other 285,000 65,000 

Department Expenditure 7,758,538       5,371,546       (2,386,992)$  -31%

Change

CFCOG FY 2022-2023 Proposed Budget 4



COMPARATIVE BUDGET ANALYSIS

Homeless COC:

Revenues:

Local 115,300 150,000 

HUD Direct 264,458 319,631 

ESG-HMIS 63,965 178,984 

ESG-Administration 12,316 12,255 

COC Fund Balance 12,245 - 

Department Revenue 468,284          660,870          

Expenditures:

COC Administration 97,545 120,000 

Coordinated Entry 30,000 73,500 

HUD-Planning 63,965 276,131 

ESG-HMIS 264,458 178,984 

ESG-Administration 12,316 12,255 

Department Expenditure 468,284          660,870          192,586$    41%

General Government 

Revenues:

Misc.& Dues 42,000 42,000 

Department Revenue 42,000 42,000 

Expenditures:

Miscellaneous 42,000 42,000 

Department Expenditure 42,000 42,000 -$   0%

Total Revenues 13,991,395$   14,787,535$   

Total Expenditures 13,991,395$   14,787,535$   796,140$    6%

Administrative Overhead from Programs 446,710$   464,895$   18,185$    4%

CFCOG FY 2022-2023 Proposed Budget 5



MEMBER ASSESSMENTS

County/ Pop. Pop. Pop. Dues/Match Dues/Match

Municipality July '19 July '20 Change 21-22 22-23 Change

1 Brunswick County 71,882      66,478      (5,404)       36,334$    35,805$    (529)$    
2 Bald Head Island 187 270 83 334 349 15 
3 Belville 2,340        2,421        81 721 736 15 
4 Boiling Spring Lakes 7,200        5,980        (1,220)       1,596 1,376 (220) 

5 Bolivia 173 150 (23) 331 327 (4) 
6 Calabash 2,085        2,023        (62) 675 664 (11) 
7 Carolina Shores 3,992        4,616        624 1,019          1,131 112 
8 Caswell Beach 475 397 (78) 386 371 (15) 
9 Holden Beach 675 927 252 422 467 45 

10 Leland 22,610      23,049      439 4,370 4,449 79 
11 Navassa 2,131        1,375        (756) 684 548 (136) 
12 Northwest 879 707 (172) 458 427 (31) 
13 Oak Island 8,089        8,448        359 1,756 1,821 65 
14 Ocean Isle Beach 687 872 185 424 457 33 
15 Sandy Creek 315 250 (65) 357 345 (12) 
16 Shallotte 4,979        4,210        (769) 1,196 1,058 (138) 

17 Southport 3,635        4,059        424 954 1,031 77 
18 St. James 5,677        6,569        892 1,322 1,482 160 
19 Sunset Beach 4,481        4,201        (280) 1,107 1,056 (51) 
20 Varnamtown 677 528 (149) 422 395 (27) 

Brunswick Total 143,169    137,530    (5,639)       54,868$   54,295$   (573)$  

21 Columbus County 40,221      35,988      (4,233)       24,367$    23,617$    (750)$    
22 Boardman 151 165 14 327 330 3 
23 Bolton 570 515 (55) 403 393 (10) 
24 Brunswick 1,098        971 (127) 498 475 (23) 
25 Cerro Gordo 193 130 (63) 335 323 (12) 

26 Chadbourn 1,751        1,562        (189) 615 581 (34) 
27 Fair Bluff 907 703 (204) 463 427 (36) 
28 Lake Waccamaw 1,451        1,287        (164) 561 532 (29) 
29 Sandyfield 474 427 (47) 385 377 (8) 
30 Tabor City 4,268        3,762        (506) 1,068 977 (91) 
31 Whiteville 5,163        4,730        (433) 1,229 1,151 (78) 

Columbus Total 56,247      50,240      (6,007)       30,251$   29,183$   (1,068)$  

32 New Hanover County 99,271      99,036      (235) 37,821$   39,889$    2,068$   
33 Carolina Beach 6,152        6,565        413 1,407 1,482 75$    
34 Kure Beach 2,261        2,191        (70) 707 694 (13)$    
35 Wilmington 122,891    115,465    (7,426)       22,420 21,084        (1,336)$   

36 Wrightsville Beach 2,487        2,473        (14) 748 745 (3)$   
New Hanover Total 233,062    225,730    (7,332)       63,103$   63,894$   791$   

- 
37 Pender County 55,723      51,727      (3,996)       30,226$    29,909$    (317)$    
38 Atkinson 357 297 (60) 364 353 (11)$    
39 Burgaw 4,087        3,700        (387) 1,036 966 (70)$    
40 St. Helena 434 418 (16) 378 375 (3)$   
41 Surf City 1,902        3,874        1,972        642 697 55$    
42 Topsail Beach 418 462 44 375 383 8$   
43 Wallace 3,963        3,384        (579) 1,013 909 (104)$    
44 Watha 232 181 (51) 342 333 (9)$   

Pender Total 67,116      64,043      (3,073)       34,376$   33,925$   (451)$  

45 Holly Ridge 1,980        4,177        2,197        656$    1,052$    396$    
46 North Topsail Beach 796 1,006        210 443 481 38$    

Affiliate Members 2,776        5,183        2,407        1,099$   1,533$   434$   

GRAND TOTAL 502,370    482,726    (19,644)     183,697$    182,830$    (867)$  

CFCOG FY 2022-2023 Proposed Budget 6



CAPE FEAR COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-2023 BUDGET ORDINANCE 

WHEREAS, the Cape Fear Council of Governments (Council) is a regional council of 
governments organized pursuant to N.C.G.S. 160A-470 through 478; 

WHEREAS, the Council is designated by the State of North Carolina as the Lead Regional 
Organization for Region O, serving Brunswick, Columbus, New Hanover, and Pender counties; 

WHEREAS, the Executive Committee is the governing board of the Council; 

WHEREAS, a regional council of governments is a public authority subject to N.C.G.S. 159, 
Article 3, the Local Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act; and 

WHEREAS, N.C.G.S. 159-8(a) requires a public authority to operate under an annual balanced 
budget ordinance; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by Executive Committee of the Cape Fear Council 
of Governments that the following amounts are hereby appropriated for the operation of said 
Council of Governments for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2022 and ending June 30, 2023;  

SECTION 1: Funds are appropriated as follows: 

General Fund 
Expenditures by Department: 

Local Governments Services   $         1,001,023 
Aging Services             7,712,096 
Workforce Development             5,371,546 
Homeless Continuum of Care                660,870 
General Government 42,000 

General Fund Total Expenditures  $       14,787,535 

Revenues by Source: 

Federal  $            343,143 
Fed/State Pass Thru           13,645,318 
State 48,263 
Member Assessment 42,000 
Local Aging Share 81,234 
Local LGS Share 60,336 
Local COC Share                150,000 
Fee-For-Service                417,241 

General Fund Total Revenues  $       14,787,535 



 

 
SECTION 2: The Budget Officer is hereby authorized to transfer appropriations within any of the 
parts in the budget schedule referenced in Section 1 without the approval of the Executive 
Committee. 
 
Adopted this 13th day of June 2022. 
 
 
 
_______________________________    _______________________________ 
Mike Forte, Chairman      April D. Radford, Clerk 
 



  

Cape Fear Council of Governments 

Public Notice 
 

 
2022-2023 Budget Ordinance Public Hearing 

 
The public should take notice that the Executive Director of the Cape Fear Council of Governments 
(CFCOG), in his capacity as Budget Officer for that agency, has submitted the proposed 2022-
2023 Budget Ordinance, along with the Budget Message, to the Executive Committee, the 
governing board of the CFCOG. The Executive Committee will hold a Public Hearing on Monday, 
June 13, 2022 at 11:00 A.M. at the office of the CFCOG, located at 1480 Harbour Dr, Wilmington, 
NC, to receive public comments on the proposed ordinance. It is the intent of the Executive Committee 
to consider adoption of the proposed ordinance following the hearing. The proposed ordinance is 
available for public inspection at https://capefearcog.org/home/admindocs/ and copies shall be 
provided in accordance with Chapter 132 of the General Statutes. 
 
April Radford, Clerk to the Board 
 
 
Newspaper run date:              One day Friday, May 27, 2022 – Star News 
                                             One day Friday, May 27, 2022 – News Reporter 
Contact: 
April Radford; aradford@capefearcog.org 910-395-4553 ext. 201 

https://capefearcog.org/home/admindocs/
mailto:aradford@capefearcog.org


CFCOG Contracts Entered

2/8/2022-5/4/2022

Dept. Program Contract Name or Description Other Party $ to CFCOG  $ to Other Party 

 $ to 

Subgrantee/ 

Subcontractor Start Date End Date

Funding 

Availability 

Clause (Y/N)

Prior 

Reimbursement 

Clause (Y/N)

CFCOG 

Matching 

Funds (Y/N)

LGS LGS St. James Planning & Zoning Services Town of St. James hourly -$                          -$                        1/1/2022 6/30/2022 NA NA N

AAA CARES CARES Act Amendment #1 - New Hanover New Hanover County -$                      74,017$              -$                        7/1/2020 9/30/2021 Y N N

AAA 5-HDC5 Supplemental Nutrition Funding - New Hanover New Hanover County -$                      101,611$            -$                        7/1/2021 9/30/2022 Y N N

LGS LGS Southport Yacht Basin Pedestrian Mobility Plan City of Southport 8,500$             -$                          -$                        3/1/2022 3/1/2023 NA NA N

COC ESG ESG Subaward - Good Shepherd Center Good Shepherd Center -$                      88,096$              -$                        1/1/2022 12/31/2022 NA N N

LGS LGS Shallotte Commercial Code Audit Town of Shallotte 4,000$             -$                          -$                        1/1/2022 4/30/2022 NA NA N

LGS RPO Nc 210/East Coast Greenway Feasibility Study McAdams -$                      99,930$              -$                        3/8/2022 6/30/2022 NA N N

LGS LGS Calabash Land Use Plan Town of Calabash 35,000$           -$                          -$                        3/10/2022 3/1/2024 NA NA N

AAA LCA Money Follows the Person Extension NC Medicaid per invoice -$                          -$                        7/1/2020 9/30/2022 NA NA N

AAA FCSP Family Caregiver PAS Additional Funds Pender Adult Services -$                      4,000$                 -$                        7/1/2021 6/30/2022 Y Y N

AAA FCSP Family Caregiver BSRIAdditional Funds Brunswick Sr. Resources -$                      6,000$                 -$                        7/1/2021 6/30/2022 Y Y N

LGS LGS Sandyfield Management Specialist Town of Sandyfield 150,750$        -$                          -$                        3/10/2022 3/10/2025 NA NA N

LGS LGS Navassa Planning Services Town of Navassa hourly -$                          -$                        3/21/2022 6/30/2023 NA NA N

LGS LGS Bolton Management Specialist Town of Bolton 150,750$        -$                          -$                        3/10/2022 3/10/2025 NA NA N

AAA MIPPA Dept Of Insurance MIPPA NCDOI 36,053$           -$                          -$                        9/2/2021 8/31/2022 NA NA N

AAA PROJECT CARE Project C.A.R.E. Budget Realignment Nc DAAS -$                      -$                          -$                        7/1/2021 6/30/2022 Y N N

WFD FACILITIES New Hanover Real Properties Sublease Nc Dept of Commerce -$                      -$                          -$                        10/1/2020 9/30/2025 NA NA N

LGS LGS Wallace Land Use Plan Town of Wallace 40,000$           -$                          -$                        4/20/2022 6/30/2023 NA NA N

WFD A/DW BCC WIOA Adult & Dislocated Amendment #2 Brunswick Community College -$                      664,952$            -$                        7/1/2021 6/30/2022 Y N N

425,053.00$   1,038,606.09$   -$                   TOTAL


	Agenda 05.09.22 EC1.pdf
	1. Call to Order, Welcome & Roll Call
	2. Invocation & Pledge
	3. Approval of Agenda ***
	4. Approval Minutes (see attachment) ***
	a. February 14, 2022
	5. 2023 Annual Meeting Date
	a. Thursday, February 23, 2023 ***
	6. Finance Reports
	a. Pay Plan amendment (see attachment) ***
	b. Auditors Contract approval (see attachment) ***
	c. Budget Report through March 31, 2022 (see attachment) ***
	d. Budget Ordinance Amendment for May 31, 2022 (see attachment) ***
	e. Presentation of FY 22/23 Budget and set public hearing for 6/13 (see attachment) ***
	7. Staff Reports
	a. Executive Director
	i. Contracts Summary (see attachment)
	b. Area Agency on Aging
	c. Homeless Continuum of Care
	d. Local Government Services
	e. Workforce Development
	8. Forum Update
	9. Chairman & Member Comments
	10. Adjourn
	Next Meeting: General Executive Committee meeting FY 22/23 Budget Public Hearing Monday, June 13, 2022, at 11:00 A.M.




